CALL MEETING TO ORDER

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

WELCOME NEW MEMBERS
Name Position
Abdullah Al-Hjowj IT Desktop Support Technician
Harmandeep Singh Constable

NEW HIRES / PROMOTIONS

Name Position
Abdullah Al-Hjowj IT Desktop Support Technician
MINUTES

Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held October 29, 2021.

DEPUTATIONS

REPORTS

Revenues and Expenditures

Financial Statements for 2021 as of October 31, 2021.

Page 1 of 51

Police Services Board Meeting

Constable Colin McGregor Building
November 24, 2021 — 8:00 a.m.

AGENDA
Start Date
November 15, 2021
November 15, 2021
Start Date
November 15, 2021
Pages 3-6

Please note: these statements will be sent out at a later date once received from the City of St. Thomas.

2022 Capital Budget

A verbal update from Chief Herridge

1l|Page




Page 2 of 51
2022-2025 Community Safety & Policing Grant

A verbal update from Chief Herridge.

Protective Services Report — November 2021 Pages 7-14

A report from Communications Coordinator Tanya Calvert dated November 2021.

Regulations of the St. Thomas Police Service (By-law #3) Pages 15-48

For Board review and approval.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

Staff Recognition Event (2021 Service Recognition)

The Staff Recognition Event will take place on February 23, 2022 at 11:30 a.m.
Consideration to a later Board Meeting start time on the same day (10:00 a.m.) to
allow Board members to attend both events.

Donations

For Board Discussion

Destruction of Holsters

A verbal update from Chief Herridge.

STPS Wall of Honour Pages 49-51

A verbal update from Chief Herridge.

MOVE TO THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

ACTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

ADJOURNMENT




Page 3 of 51

Police Services Board Meeting

Constable Colin McGregor Building
October 29, 2021

MINUTES
ATTENDANCE: OFFICIALS:
D. Reith Chair C. Herridge Chief of Police
S. Birkby Vice Chair M. Roskamp Deputy Chief
D. Warden Member T. Terpstra Executive Administrator
J. Herbert Member
J. Preston Member
GUESTS:
David Tilley Police Services Advisor Operations Unit
MEDIA:
None.
CALL MEETING TO ORDER

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA

NEW HIRES / PROMOTIONS

Moved By: D. Warden
Seconded By: S. Birkby

THAT: The Police Services Board approve the hiring of 3™ Class Constable Harmandeep Singh effective November 15,

2021.
Carried.
MINUTES
Moved By: D. Warden
Seconded By: S. Birkby
THAT: The minutes of the meeting held September 22, 2021 be confirmed.
Carried.

ljPage




Page 4 of 51

DEPUTATIONS

REPORTS

2022 Budget Update
Moved By: D. Warden
Seconded By: S. Birkby

THAT: The Police Services Board accept the 2022 Budget Update as presented by Chief Herridge.
Carried.

Chief Herridge noted that the St. Thomas Police Service received the Victim Support Grant for 2022/2023 budget in the total amount
of $120,794.30.

Chief Herridge noted that he will be meeting with the City of St. Thomas to review the budget submission on November 3, 2021.
Revenues & Expenditures

Moved By: D. Warden
Seconded By: S. Bikby

THAT: The printout of revenues and expenditures ending August 31, 2021 be accepted.
Carried.

Chief Herridge noted that the budget is currently on track and it is projected that there will be a surplus at the end of 2021.
Discussions will occur with the St. Thomas Police Service and the City of St. Thomas in relation to any surplus dollars remaining and

the allocation of these dollars.

Protective Services Report — October 2021
Moved By: D. Warden
Seconded By: S. Birkby

THAT: The Protective Services Report for October 2021 be received.
Carried.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Moved By: D. Warden
Seconded By: S. Birkby

THAT: The Police Services Board file and receive the items included in the Petitions and Communications Board
package including:

e Letter — Support of School Resource Officer (SRO) Program from the St. Thomas Police Services Board
e  Letter —School Resource officer (SRO) Program Letter of Response from Thames Valley District School Board

e  Letter — Animal Welfare re: Updates to Legislation — Fire Department Response Permitted from the St. Thomas Police

Services Board

e  Letter —Animal Welfare re: Updates to Legislation - Fire Department Response Permitted from the St. Thomas City Council.

2|Page




Page 5 of 51
e  Ontario Naloxone Program — 24 Quarter

e Special investigations Unit — Annual Report 2020-2021

e  United Way 3M Harvest Lunch — PSB Donation
Carried.

Chief Herridge noted that the Thames Valley District School Board met on October 26, 2021 and they voted to continue to pause but
not necessarily end the School Resource Officer program.

Chief Herridge put out a statement yesterday to support the program not being cancelled but also to highlight the great work that is
being done by the members of the St. Thomas Police Service.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

Sponsor a Family - Christmas
Moved By: D. Warden
Seconded By: S. Birbky

THAT: The Police Services Board sponsor a local family in need for Christmas in the amount of $600.00.
Carried.

Atlohsa Family Healing Service - Donation
Moved By: S. Birkby
Seconded By: J. Herbert

THAT: The Police Services Board donate $500 to the Atlohsa Family Healing Services, an organization focused on the

transformation of mental health services for the local indigenous population.
Carried.

The Board discussed donations and the process for donations. Request for donations can continue to be put on the agenda for
further discussion.

Violence Against Women Services Elgin County - Donation

Moved By:
Seconded By:

THAT: The Police Services Board donate $500 to Violence Against Women Services Elgin County.
Carried.

Invitation to Guests

Chair Reith will be extending an invite to MPP Jeff Yurek and MP Karen Vecchio to attend a future Board meeting.

3|Page




MOVE TO THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Moved By: J. Herbert
Seconded By: J. Preston

THAT: We move to the Committee of the Whole.

ACTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Moved By: J. Herbert
Seconded By: J. Preston

THAT: We adopt the actions of the Committee of the Whole.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved By: J. Preston
Seconded By: J. Herbert

THAT: We do now adjourn at 9:20 a.m.

Page 6 of 51

Carried.

Carried.

Carried.

Dan Reith
Police Services Board Chair

4|Page




Page 7 of 51

Strength Through Progréss

o
)
!

Protective
Services

P " AL

S SR

St I

——
g

[ -
s ey

NOVEMBER 2021

St. Thomas Police Service

Tanya Calvert
Corporate Communications Coordinator




Officers Prepping For a Busy 2021

Year to date incidents as of midnight October 31st 2021 = 18,395
Year to date incidents as of midnight October 31st 30" 2020 = 18,582

Weekend stats

Oct 02/03 — 158 incidents
Oct 09/10 — 164 incidents
Oct 16/17 — 125 incidents
Oct 23/24 — 155 incidents
Oct 30/31 - 154 incidents

From the Traffic Unit

Stunt Driver Charged

Page 8 of 51

Officers with the Traffic Management Unit charged a twenty six year old male
with Stunt Driving Saturday on Sunset Drive near Stanley Street. Police were
monitoring speeds with a laser radar unit when they recorded a vehicle
travelling 101 km/hr in a posted 50 km/hr zone. The driver was charged under
the Ontario Stunt Driving Laws and was issued an automatic thirty day drivers
licence suspension. The vehicle was impounded for fourteen days. The driver
will appear in court at a later date. #16939

Over the Thanksgiving weekend the St. Thomas Police Service participated in
Operation Impact which is a public awareness campaign aiming at educating

drivers and keeping our roads safe. During the campaign a total of 22 charges
were laid.

The results of Operation Impact 2021 are as follows;
Speeding~7

Careless Driving -3

Drive while under suspension — 3

Fail to remain at the scene of an accident HTA - 2
Traffic Light offences — 2

Impaired/Over 80 - 1

Cell phone -1

Adult fail to properly wear seatbelt — 2

Child not properly secured with seatbelt — 1

The St. Thomas Police would like to thank all those drivers who follow the rules
of the roads that help keep our community safe.

& Twest

Ghis Herridge
RO RFdpe

#HappyThanksgiving2021 to those who we serve
@cityofstthomas and especially to every @STPSmedia
member (and everyone else) working today away from
your families. We appreciate you alll #ThankYou

- A

HAPPYATHANKSGIVING

)

O

TO THOSE EATING
AT THIS TABLE.

IR AM - Dt 112090 om St Tnomas. Ontarto Twitter tor iPhone




Page 9 of 51

From the Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Team

October is Islamic History Month. STPS values the amazing community partnership
we have with our local Muslim Community. Learn more https://ihmcanada.com

From the Mobile Outreach Support Team

New Uniform for MOST Officer

Constable Jeremy Linker, the St. Thomas Police
Officer assigned to the Mobile Outreach Support
Team will look a little different on the street from
now on. In an effort to soften the appearance of
the police officer working alongside two Canadian Mental Health Association Clinicians, a slight change in uniform has
been implemented. The traditional police uniform with exterior vest and chest mounted tactical gear has been replaced
with an under the shirt carrier for the bulletproof vest and gear has been moved to the officers belt. The shirt is labelled
for easy recognition in public and aligns with a similar look the Clinicians will be adopting in the near future. Through
interactions with those in crisis we know that the traditional uniform can trigger further anxiety and distress in a person
experiencing a mental health crisis. The intention is that this look will increase approachability of the officer and
encourage individuals to reach out.

STPS Reach 100% Vaccination Compliance

Members of the St. Thomas Police Service have achieved one
hundred percent compliance with the newly released STPS
Vaccination Policy. All staff including police officers, civilian
members and court support staff have received their first shot with
only a few waiting on a second dose.

The Safe Vaccination Disclosure and Safe Workplace Procedure
Policy was released on October 4th. The policy issued a deadline of
October 15th for staff to provide proof of vaccination or those who
could not be fully vaccinated based on a protected ground under the
Ontario Human Rights Code had to submit a request for
accommodation with supporting documentation by the same date.

The creation of the policy was based on the advice and recommendation of the Public Health Authorities and was
developed in consultation with the St. Thomas Police Association and the St. Thomas Police Services Board. The St.
Thomas Police Service has put the health and safety of our community and our members first throughout the entire
pandemic and are very pleased with the overwhelming compliance of our members.




Page 10 of 51

Incidents of Note

Child Pornography

On September 9, 2021 22 year old Dawsyn Matte turned himself into the St. Thomas Police. After an investigation between
uniform patrol, the Criminal Investigations Branch and Aylmer Police, it was determined that Matte was in possession of
child pornography. As a result he was arrested and charged with 1 count of possession of child pornography. He was held

for court at that time.

Update on fire investigation

A 39 year-old male has been arrested and charged with arson in regards to a small fire that was lit in front of a soup kitchen
on Talbot Street on Thursday. The man was later identified by police and taken into custody on Friday morning. He was
additional charged with failing to comply with an Undertaking as he was on conditions not to possess any incendiary
devices. He was held in custody for a court appearance. ST21016778

Viral Social Media Post Causes Concern

St. Thomas Police responded to two separate calls of concern regarding threats of a school shooting that had circulated via
the social media app called Snapchat. Through investigation it was discovered that the Snapchat video had made its way to
St. Thomas all the way from an incident stemming in Missouri, U.S.A where three youths were arrested in connection to the
threat. The social media post threatens a school shooting to occur at "Central High School". The post is now spreading
nation wide as almost every city has a school with "Central" in the name causing widespread concern. The origin of the
original post had heen confirmed and there is no threat to public safety locally. 718398

Narcan Administered

Officers on Community Patrol administered several rounds of Narcan Tuesday morning after locating a man and woman
unconscious on Hiawatha Street. The two were face down on the side walk when police arrived. The man was administered
two rounds of Narcan and regained consciousness. The female was administered six rounds before regaining
consciousness. The two were transported to St. Thomas Elgin General Hospital by Paramedics as a precaution. 718484

Stolen Vehicle

Three people were arrested Thursday night just before 10 pm after police discovered the vehicle they were travelling in was
stolen. Officers on Community Patrol initiated the traffic stop after seeing a vehicle being driven without licence plates
attached to it. The driver was pulled over and further investigation revealed the new Jeep Cherokee had been taken from a
dealership in town. A fifty seven year old male passenger, a thirty eight year old female passenger and the fifty year old
female driver were all taken into custody without incident. The man was charged with Possession of Stolen Property Over
$5000 and later released on an Undertaking with court date, The female passenger was charged with Possession of Stolen
Property Over $5000 and two counts of Drug Possession after Officers located a small quantity of Crystal
Methamphetamine and Oxycocet during processing. She was later released on an Undertaking with court date. The female
driver was charged with Theft of Motor Vehicle Over $5000, Possession of Stolen Property Over $5000, Obstruct Police,
Drive no Licence, Drive no Plates and one count of Drug Possession after officers located a small amount of Fentanyl during
processing. She was held in custody for a court appearance. 18637



Page 11 of 51

St Thomas Police Service
ﬁ Published by Stps Officer @ - October 5- @

TQO THE EMPLOYEE AT THE REAL CANADIAN SUPERSTORE

(you know who you are, but unfortunately we don't!)

Monday evening a seventy four year old St. Thomas weman walked into the RCSS and attempted W

to purchase $1400 worth of Google Play Cards. An alert employee knew something was up ancl m

took the time to eclucate this person about online fraud and how they work

WHICH WAS EXACTLY WHAT WAS HAPPENING! - e W

Then, the employee suggested she contact police and her bank immediately to protect her
money and her identity.

WHICH 1S EXACTLY WHAT SHE DID!

#teamwork

Real Canadian Superstore

A Statement from the Chief

A Statement from the Chief of Police, Chris
Herridge on the recent decision made by Thames
Valley District School Board:

“As education, community and policing leaders, we
need evidence based research that not only
evaluates School Resource Officer (SRO)
programming, but one that also takes into account
the experiences of Black, Indigenous and People of
Colour (BIPOC) students. In order to move forward,
we need to develop a truly transparent

- o relationship, that builds confidence in the program
Thames Valley trustees won't end police-in-schools program - for now . )
Trustees of the region s laigest school board voted Tuesday night to continue to pause — but n.. and certalnly in all students.

The St. Thomas Police Service applauds this recent decision by our partners at the Thames Valley District School Board. |
am pleased that the SRO program is only being paused at this time. We are very proud of our local school programs, the
terrific work STPS officers have been daing in St. Thomas schools for decades, and the positive relationships which have
been developed, but even in that pride | do recognize there is clearly a need for change. We are definitely open to
listening and learning, with a goal of bridging any gaps in our relationship with St. Thomas youth.”

Chief Chris Herridge

St. Thomas Police Service
https://Ifpress.com/news/local-news/thames-valley

St Thomas Police Service
ﬂ Published by Stps Officar @ Qctober 3 @

B ST THOMAS: e (61 4 /01

Best wishes to the United Way for another successful 3M Virtual Harvest Lunch. The St Thomas " Fouce skvict
Police Service Board donated $500 to the cause. A cheque was presented to Jennepher Cahill of LI o
the United Way by Board Chair Dan Reith. Click the link to learn more about this impartant - R r:{: ';,W‘, P

charity event. Donate today!

https://p2p.onecause com/3m-harvest-lunch-21




Page 12 of 51

St Thomas Pulice Service
Collision Statistics

Collisons:
. Quarter: 3
A Quick Look at the Numbers July to September 2021
Number of Collisions Reported to Police...........ccuumreiimrisimnnesinisinssriseeniosiaes 73

Number of Vehicles Involved in ColliSions.......ramsreereseesisesesssssasssssasansssesers 149
Number of Collision Related Injuries Reported..........ccvcctrnsinissnissssmsmsnsersnmassensers 17

Vehicle Collision Breakdown

Other Moving Vehicle 122

Parked Vehicle 19
Pedestrian 01
Cyclist 02
Fixed Object (pole, fence} 01
Skid/Slide off Road 01
Other 03

Collison Numbers by Month MOST COLLISIONS occurred on a Mon & Thur (13)

while the LEAST amount were on a Fri (7)
Jul 24 Aug 22 Sep 17

Peak Time for a Collision: 2 pm Collisions Involving Impaired Drivers
No Collisions occurred from 1-3 am By Alcohol: 1 By Drug: 1

Top Accident Locations for the Quarter

First Avenue at Talbot Street
Highbury Avenue at South Edgeware Road
Talbot Street at Woodworth Avenue

*For a comprehensive list of statistical data related to traffic collisions reported to STPS please visit cur website at
wwuy stps.on.ca and review the report as collected by Accident Support Services International Ltd.*



Halloween Costume Contest Winner

And the Winner is......

Junior Police Officer Raven who clearly has a bright future
with our K9 unit!!

Congratulations, Police Service Dog Axle will be contacting
you shortly to arrange a visit!

hank you again to everyone who entered. We enjoyed
seeing all the Junior Police Officer Costumes! We wish
everyone a safe and Happy Halloween.

Watch for our Officers Sunday night! They will be handing out

candy from their cruisers! "@

Halloween Night: Quiet




Page 14 of 51

2021 CHARGE ANALYSIS
R T O ) Ve e ) e R

CHARGES 7 Jan l*] Feb  I*] Mar v, Apr Lr;’ May 7 Jun  ir] Jul L= Aug || Sep .g Oct v
CRIMINAL CODE 113.00 78.00 175.00 176.00' 239.00 205.00 134.00 E 164.00 140.00 , 149.00
CDSA 7.00 5.00 8.00 30.00' 30.00 9.00 8.00' 11.00 4.00’ 19.00
CA 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 1.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
YOUA 0.00 0.00 2.00 2.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00’ 0.00 0.00' 0.00
HTA 170.00 195.00 444.00 285.00' 428.00 317.00 339.00 - 273.00 341.00' 301.00
LLA 4.00 2.00 8.00 13.00' 3.00 9.00 5.00 10.00 6.00' 4.00
CAIA 20.00 20.00 31.00 27.00' 26.00 22.00 35.00' 24,00 21.00' 22.00
TPA 0.00 12.00 24.00 66'00;- 35.00 21.00 17.00' 16.00 8.00’ 18.00
EPA 0.00 0.00 4.00 3.00' 1.00 0.00 3.00' 1.00 2.00' 1.00
SSA 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 3.00
DOLA 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00._ 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
FCSA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
FLA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
POA 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
SOR 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0'00- 0.00 0.00' 0.00
ORVA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00
SFOA 0.00 0.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 0.00 2.00' 0.00 0.00 1.00
TTA 0.00 0.00 2.00 1.00' 2.00 2.00 0.00' 1.00 0.00 » 0.00
OSPCA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 ! 0.00
RSA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
CCA 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.00' 1.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 2.00
CRSOR/2020 (leave quarantine facility) 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00r 0.00
ROA * 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00’ 0.00r 0.00' 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
TOTAL POA 195.00 230.00 518.00 404.00' 497.00 371.00 401.00' 325.00 378.00' 352.00
MVC - Fatal 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00' 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00r 0.00
MVC - Injuries 2.00 3.00 2.00 5.00' 4.00 1.00 2.00' 1.00 2.00‘_ 6.00
MVC - No Injuries (not NOR) 13.00 15.00 13.00 16.00' 13.00 28.00 16.00' 15.00 16.00 . 15.00:
By-Law (including parking - NOT 3-5) 11.00 11.00 6.00 3.00' 10.00 2.00 13.00' 5.00 11.00' 4.00
3-5 Parking ONLY 21.00 33.00 10.00 0.00’ 0.00 0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.00' 0.00
Incidents 1,566.00 1,110.00 1,869.00 2,009.00' 1,976.00 1,923.00 1,887.00' 2,056.00 2,021.00' 1,978.00
Arrests 124.00 84.00 125.00 98.00 159.00 183.00 180.00 178.00 174.00 153.00:



REGULATIONS
OF THE
ST. THOMAS POLICE SERVICE

PASSED AND ENACTED AT THE CITY OF ST. THOMAS
THIS 24™ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2021
REVISED NOVEMBER 24, 2021

Chair, Police Services Board

Page 15 of 51
‘Page 10f34




Page 16 of 51
Page 2 of 34

ST. THOMAS POLICE SERVICES BOARD

BY-LAW [i8

Being a by-law to regulate the duties, dress, discipline and deportment of the members of

the St. Thomas Police Service.

WHEREAS the Police Services Board of St. Thomas are responsible for the policing and
maintenance of law and order in the City of St. Thomas, and the members of the Police are
subject to the government of the Board, and shall obey its lawful directions, pursuant to

the Police Services Act, 1990.

WHEREAS the Police Services Board may by By-law make regulations not inconsistent with
the regulations under the Police Services Act for the government of the Police for preventing

neglect or abuse, and for rendering it efficient in the discharge of its duties.

NOW, therefore the Police Services Board of the City of St. Thomas enacts as follows:



Page 17 of 51
Page 3 of 34

Chapter One .

Definitions |
|

Inthis by-law, the following definitions shall apply unless the context otherwise
requlires:

a) BOARD means Police Services Board for the City of St. Thomas.
b} BRANCH is a functional unit of one or more employees, organized to

perform a specific task and the most subordinate as set out in

the organizational chart.

c) SERVICE means the Police Service of the Corporation of the City of St.
Thomas.

d) MEMBER means every employee of the Service.

e) PATROL AREA Is a confined area of patrol for one patrol unit.

f) REGULATIONS means the regulations contained in this by-law

g SENIOR OFFICER is a member who has attained the rank of Inspector or higher

and includes members acting in their capacity.

h) ADMINISTRATIVE means a mandatory course of action for all members of the
PROCEDURE Service.
i) OPERATIONAL means a course of action prescribed for all members

PROCEDURE of the Service which may be varied when circumstances permit.



Page 18 of 51
Page 4 of 34

Chapter Two

General

2.1 Failure by a member of the Service, without lawful excuse, to comply with any of the
provisions of this by-law shall be deemed to be disobeying, omitting, or neglecting
to carry out a lawful order, and such member may, if he or she is a police officer, be
charged accordingly, under the Code of Offences in Regulations made pursuant to the
Police Services Act, 1990 as amended. If the member is a civilian employee, he or she

will be subject to discipline, which may include suspension and/or dismissal.

Revision effective November 24, 2021 at the City of St. Thomas.

Chair, Police Services Board



3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 19 of 51

Page 5 of 34

Chapter Three

Rank and Duty

CHIEF OF POLICE

The Chief of Police shall, as the Chief Executive Officer, be responsible for the general
administration, direction and discipline of the Service, subject to the authority of the
Board. He is responsible for enforcing the Regulations of the Service for the good
government and discipline of the Service. He may also issue, from time to time, such
routine orders and policy and procedures, as he deems necessary, in conformity with
the Regulations of the Service, to deal with particular matters or duties as they arise.
The Chief shall ensure that all Statutes that apply, both Federal and Provincial, in

addition to Municipal by-law that apply, are enforced within his jurisdiction.

The Chief shall provide such reports, estimates and statistics as to apprise the Board

of the administrative and operational performance of the Service and its members.

DEPUTY CHIEF OF POLICE

The Deputy Chief of Police shall assist the Chief of Police in the performance of his
duties. He shall command all operations and activities within the area of his
responsibility, including the good order, efficiency and discipline of the members

under his command.

SUPERINTENDENTS - STAFF INSPECTORS -INSPECTORS

Superintendents. Staff Inspectors and Inspectors shall supervise personnel and
activities and shall be responsible to their Command Officers as described in the

organizational chart, for activities, efficiency and discipline with the Service.



3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 20 of 51

Page 6 of 34

STAFF SERGEANTS

Staff Sergeants shall carry out supervisory duties within the Service as designated.
They will be responsible to their Command Officers as described in the organizational

chart, for the activities, efficiency and discipline within the Service.

SERGEANTS

Sergeants assigned to supervisory duties shall be responsible for the efficient
performance of police duty personnel under their supervision and shall advise,
instruct, and assist them in their duties in a constructive, helpful manner and be
responsible for their appearance, good conduct and discipline. They shall report for
duty in advance of the designated parade time in order to prepare their platoons for

their tour of duty.

Sergeants assigned to investigative, identification and special functions or tasks,
shall be responsible for the efficient performance of duties within their branch as
set out in the Service regulations and operational procedures and shall be
responsible for the appearance, good conduct and discipline of themselves and

members under their supervision.

CONSTABLES

Constables shall report for duty shortly before the designated parade time, properly
dressed in accordance with the dress regulations, clean and fit for duty. Constables
shall carry out duties assigned to them consistent with the Police Services Act and its
regulations, regulations of the Service, general orders, supervisory directives and

procedures of the Service.

Members shall not use a private vehicle at any time unless authorized by their
Supervisor or other Senior Officer. Members shall familiarize themselves with their
patrol area and when on night duty or other times when business premises are

closed, shall make checks of those premises for illegal entries or other circumstances



3.7

3.8

Page 21 of 51

Page 7 of 34

that would require investigation.

ACTING RANK

Any member assigned to perform the duties of another rank shall be governed by

the orders and regulations of that rank.

CONTROL OF PERSONNEL

For communications purposes, all radio equipped Officers and radio transmissions
shall come under the direct control of the, Communications Radio Operator
(CRO)..Radio communications shall be restricted to operations and administration

police business. Improper use of the police radio communication network is an

offence.



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Page 22 of 51

Page 8 of 34

Chapter Four

Terms and Conditions of Service

All members of the Service, while in the employ of the Service, shall abide by and be
subject to such regulations of the Service as may be laid down from time to time by

the Board for the government and control of the Service.

Every member of the Service shall carry out all lawful orders and shall, at all times,
punctually and promptly perform all appointed duties and attend to all matters

within the scope of their office.

The Chief of Police or the Deputy Chief of Police may, if expedient in the public

will ensure the

and 1900h/rs toensure:

Members of the Service shall attend and remain on duty as directed.

Unless otherwise provided in these regulations, a member of the Service shall be

detailed or assigned to such duties as directed by the Chief of Police.

Members of the Service shall submit written reports in the prescribed manner as

directed by the Chief of Police.

Members shall attend court when subpoenaed or notified by a member of the Court
Branch or the member's Supervisor. Members will provide testimony in court
proceedings as required by law. An officer’s testimony may be presented in person
or by other electronic audio/video means at the discretion of the residing judge or

justice.




4.8

4.9

4.10

Page 23 of 51

Page 9 of 34

Members shall observe strict order and decorum in and about the Courts.

Officers, both on and off duty, are required to wear their uniforms when attending
Court. Officers that normally wear civilian clothes are not required to wear uniforms.
The presence of extra uniformed officers in Court and around the halls should
produce a more secure feeling for the Court staff and general public. As you are no
doubt aware, the Service has been given the responsibility of Courtroom Security.

This measure should assist us greatly in complying with our additional responsibility.

All Shift briefings commencing at 0600/0700 hours and 1800/1900 hours will take

place in the main

floor Briefing Room. Officer(s) arriving later for duty (i.e. ATO at beginning of shift)

can be briefed in the Staff Sergeant’s office or the Briefing Room.



5.1

5.2

53

54

55

5.6

Page 24 of 51

Page 10 of 34

Chapter Five

Uniforms and Equipment

Articles of uniform and equipment shall be issued to members of the Service from

time to time as authorized by the Board.

Articles of uniform and equipment shall be issued to members only for official use
while in the Service and shall be surrendered by the member upon termination of
employment or as a condition of a suspension. Any articles lost or damaged through

carelessness shall be made good at the expense of the membertowhom itwasissued.

Members of the Service shall not exchange any uniform or equipment without the

permission of the Chief of Police.

Members of the Service shall not wear distinguishable police uniform on the street in

conjunction with civilian clothes.

Members of the Service are responsible for the good care, proper maintenance and
serviceable condition of property issued for or assigned to their use and shall
promptly report to their supervisor the loss of, damage to, or unserviceable
condition of any property issued for orassigned to their use. No member shall alter
police equipment by changing it inany way except in cases of emergency or with the

consent of the Chief of Police or Deputy Chief of Police.

When a member of the Service resigns or is dismissed from the Service, a portion of
the salary due to him/her shall be withheld until specific articles of uniform or

equipment are returned in good order and condition.



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

Page 25 of 51

Page 11 of 34

Supervisors shall ensure that members of the Service under their supervision are

properly dressed in accordance with the dress regulations.

Medals, ribbons or decorations received for service in the Armed Forces, Merchant

Navy or for Police Duty may be worn in accordance with dress regulations.

Every member while on duty shall carry a warrant card bearing his or her name, a
photograph and an authorized badge. The card and/or badge shall be produced
whenever required to establish the identity of the member and shall not be used to

obtain favour or private advantage.

Plain clothes members, while on street duty, shall carry all issued Use of Force
Options.

Members shall use notebooks issued by the Service and no other for note taking.

Notebooks shall be stored inaccordance with Adequacy Standard LE-022.

All entries into any books or other documents connected with the duties of the

Service shall be electronically entered or made inink.

Erasures in authorized books or documents are prohibited. If corrections are
necessary, the person making such corrections shall draw a single ink line through
the incorrect matter ensuring that it is legible and the correction shall be made and

initialed in ink.

Equipment issued on temporary basis, i.e. portable radio or emergency supplies, shall
be returned to their place of issue no later than the conclusion of the member's tour

of duty unless otherwise directed by a Supervisor.



Page 26 of 51

Page 12 of 34

Chapter Six

Officer _ Dress

QuFgasliistadliewempiovessiowordcamientanleinthewarkplace hawever westillinesc

taiproecta praressional imagaiior newemployaes ancicammumnityimembearnss Eveniin g
secdandineverwrinkiacann;
1

dirty, orirayed clothingisunacceptaiie . Anyviclathing that heas waords, terns, ar piaturesthat

1sandatherimaotecasualiclothing,

dithoughineverclothing potentiallyoffensive tolethers, are allowed dunng Frcayvisidec)s

{
¢

i) =l ; |
15 CINESS CHOW ICLayS -

6.1 SENIOR OFFICER'S DRESS

6.1.1 To be worn for ceremonial parades, guards of honour, church services, funerals,
investitures, social occasions, civil functions, Ontario Police College graduations:
e Tunic, Senior Officer Pattern Collar badges, gold
e Rankinsignia Lanyard, Gold

e Trousers, Senior Officer Pattern Belt, Waist, Gilt

e Shirt, white Tie, black

e Socks, navy blue or black Shoes, black Oxford Forage Cap

e Gloves, white nylon Nameplate

e Topcoat, blue gabardine or Melton clothcoat during inclement weather; 1/4 Wellington
e Medals

6.1.2 To be worn for normal tours of duty:
e Collar badges, gold

e Rankinsignia

e Trousers, Senior Officer Pattern; Belt, Waist, Cloth

Shirt, m blue;Tie, black




Page 27 of 51

Page 13 of 34

e Socks, navy blue or black; Shoes, black Oxford

Forage Hat or Ball

Name Plate

Coat during inclement weather

Tie, black (optional)

e Rank insignia

Name Plate

e Trousers, officer’s pattern

e Belt, waist, black leather

Socks, navy blue or black

Shoes, black Oxford

Forage Hat or Ball

6.1.4 To be worn for evening attire:
e Mess jacket

e Trousers, navy blue overall

Tie, black bow

Boots, black

% Wellington

Forage Hat

Medals, miniature

6.2 STAFF SERGEANT'S, SERGEANT'S AND CONSTABLE'S DRESS

6.2.1 Tobewornforceremonial parades, guards of honour, church services, funerals,
investitures, social occasions, civil functions, OntarioPolice College graduations:

e Tunic, issue pattern



Collar badges, chrome
Trousers, issue pattern
Forage Cap, issue pattern
Shirt, white

Tie, black

Socks, navy blue or black
Shoes, black

Belt, Waist, Cloth
Gloves, white

Lanyard, white cotton
Medals

Name plate

6.2.2 To be worn for normal tours of duty:

Jacket nylonuniform
Trousers, issue pattern

Ball cap, Forage Hat — Funeral Escorts

Sweater blue/blackV neck pullover type (withflashes)
Softbodyarmour asissued

Tie, or dickie black (optional)

Socks, navy blue or black

Shoes, black Oxford or boots

Whistle

Name plate

Medal ribbons

Pistol, issue

Magazines, in leather pouch

Page 28 of 51

Page 14 of 34



Page 29 of 51

Page 15 of 34

e Notebook and pen

® Inclement weather - raincoat

e Gloves, black leather or insulated mitts
e Toque in place of Ball cap

e Boots, black

6.2.3 To be worn for normal tours of duty during warm weather:

e External soft body armour as issued
e Tie, black (optional)

e Trousers, issue pattern

e Ball Cap, Forage Hat — Funeral Escorts
e Socks, navy blue or black

e Shoes, black Oxford or boot

e Whistle

» Name plate

e Pistol issue

¢ Magazine, in leather pouch ASE
e Handcuffs
e Notebook and pen

e Inclement weather: Raincoat



Page 30 of 51

Page 16 of 34

Y MANAGEMENT

Bodkenstylepan

SIS, B ress@s el

SRS NGRS BIGUsE

Eavenin

Bledldisstied Zipupsweatel




Page 31 of 51

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

STAFF SERGEANT'S, SERGEANT'S AND CONSTABLE'S DRESS

Members are responsible for the neatness, cleanliness and deportment of their

person and shall always, when on duty, appear in the prescribed dress.

Members shall be properly shaved and well groomed.

Sideburns on male members shall be well trimmed. Such sideburns shall be no wider
than one inch and shall not extend downward lower than the auditory opening of the
ear. Beards and goatees may be worn providing that approval be obtained from the
Chief of Police and subject to the following:
e Beards and goatees shall be evenly trimmed, neat in appearance and worn
with a moustache.
e Beards and goatees shall be fully developed when worn in uniform and
shall be no longer than
e 2.5 centimeters in length and shall not extend below the Adam's apple.
The remainder of the neck shall be clean shaven.
e Variations such as van dykes and muttonchops are unacceptable.
e If, in the opinion of the Chief of Police, a member’s beard or goatee is not
neat and clean in appearance, the Chief of Police may order the member to

be clean shaven and the member shall comply

‘Page 17 of 34




Page 32 of 51

Page 18 of 34

6.4.4 Moustaches shall be neatly trimmed and shall not extend beyond one quarter inch

over the corners of the mouth.

6.4.5 All members' hair shall be neat, tidy and trimmed around the ears. The hair at the
back of the head of male members shall be neat and well-trimmed so that it does not
extend lower than one half inch above the collar. All female members, while in
uniform, shall maintain their hair in a neat, well- groomed fashion and it shall not
extend lower than one half below the shirt collar. Ringlets, ponytails, afros and any

other fad styled hair shall not be worn while any member is in uniform.

6.4.6 Members, while in uniform, shall not wear jewelry other than a wristwatch, wedding
and/or engagement rings, or medic alert bracelet nor shall they wear excessive facial
make-up. Notwithstanding the foregoing, members with pierced ears may wear one
pair of gold or silver coloured ball type stud (post) earrings provided that the
diameter of the ball does not exceed 6 millimeters and that only one stud earring is
worn in each earlobe. Members may wear a necklace provided it is not clearly visible

or noticeable.

Articles of jewelry referred to in this section which are damaged or destroyed shall
not be repaired or replaced at the expense of the police service except when

authorized by the Chief of Police.

6.5 Onlyarticles of uniform and equipment, issued by the Service, shall be worn as
prescribed by the order of dress unless otherwise authorized bythe Chief of Police or

the Deputy Chief of Police.

6.6  Deviation from this dress regulation shall be made only with the consent of the

Chief of Police or Deputy Chief of Police.



Page 33 of 51

6.7

6.8

Shortsleeve order shall be worn at the discretion of the officer.

Longsleeve order shallbe worn atthe discretion of the officer.

Page 19 of 34




7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 34 of 51
Page 20 of 34

Chapter Seven

Miscellaneous Regulations

SALUTING

Members, when in uniform shall salute members of the Royal Family, the Governor
General, Lieutenant Governors, the Prime Minister of Canada, the Premier of a
province of Canada, or a Head of State. Members of the Service shall also salute
during the playing of the National Anthem, the raising or lowering of a National Flag,

and/or the passing of a funeral procession.

Members of the Service shall not salute when inside a building except on ceremonial

occasions.

DETACHED DUTIES

Members of the Service assigned to detached duties, either permanently or
temporarily, shall continue under these regulations. Orders issued under the
authority of the regulations are applicable. Without limiting the generality of this
section, detached duty shall include attendance at a Police College, liaison with other
Police Services or Agencies, and any special assignments which remove a member

from normal physical contact with the service

TESTIMONIALS ANDADVERTISEMENTS

Members shall not authorize the use of any photograph of themselves inuniform
in connection with any testimonial or advertisement, nor shall any member, in
their official capacity endorse or subscribe any such testimonial or advertisement,
nor shallany member authorize any mention to be made of their official title, rank

or membership in the Service in connection with any testimonial or



7.4

7.5

7.6

Page 35 of 51

Page 21 of 34

advertisement.

RELEASE OF NEWS INFORMATION

All members shall treat as confidential the official business of the Service. Members
shall not talk for publication, nor be interviewed, nor make public speeches on public
business, nor shall they impart information relating to the official business of the

Service to anyone, except:

a) Under the due process of the law, or,
b) As directed by, or with the permission of the Chief of Police or Deputy
Police Chief.

Members designated by the Chief of Police are authorized to give representatives of the
news media items of news relating to accidents, arrests or other occurrences, butincases
when by publication of information, the ends of justice are likely to be prejudiced,
information shallbewithheldand nothing in this paragraph shallauthorize the giving of

information which:

a) May be of assistance to criminals or suspected persons, or
b) May cause unnecessary pain ordistresstoindividuals, or,
c) Is of a confidential nature.

The identity of any person giving confidential information to the police must never be

disclosed to the public.

PERSONAL LIABILITIES
All members shall promptly pay their just debts and shall not incur liabilities, which they

are unable or unwilling to discharge.

GAMES OF CHANCE AND GAMBLING

Members shall not engage in any game of chance or gamble in the building of the

Service.



Page 36 of 51

Page 22 of 34

7.7  REPRESENTATIONS TO THEBOARD

Members shall not make complaints or other representations to the Board or members of

the Board exceptthroughthe Chief of Police.

Nothing in this section shall be applicable to the recognized association of the Service
when approaching the Board with a view to discuss matters as provided under the

provisionsofthe Police Services Act 19900rthetermsof a Collective Agreement.

7.8  RESIDENCE

Members shall have a telephone number listed within the member's personnel file.

7.9 CHANGE OF ADDRESS OR TELEPHONE NUMBER
Any member, who has any change of address and/or telephone number, shall notify the
Chief of Police orDeputy ChiefofPolicein writingwithinforty-eight(48) hoursfollowing

suchchange.

7.10 TELEPHONE ANSWERING
Anymemberofthe Service, whenansweringapolice telephone, shall promptly
respond bygiving the callerthe rank or position ofthe memberand the surname of the
member.
7.11 MARITALSTATUS
Any member, who has any change in marital status, shall notify the Chief of Police or

Deputy Chief of Police in writing within fifteen (15) days following such change.

7.10 ASSOCIATION WITH UNDESIRABLE PERSONS
Members shall not create doubt as to their ability to fulfil the conditions of their Oath
of Office by living or associating with persons, through which association, discredit

upon the reputation of the member or the Service is likely to result.

7.11 SICKNESS OR INJURY



Page 37 of 51

Page 23 of 34

a) When it becomes apparent to any member that sickness or injury will prevent
the member from reporting for duty, the member shall report such sickness

or injury to the Duty N.C.O. or other supervisor:

i On the night shift, at least three (3) hours prior to the

commencement of the member's tour of duty, or

ii. On the day shift, at least one (2) hours prior to the
commencement of the member's tour of duty.
b) Any member absent through sickness or injury shall report to the Duty N.C.O.,

giving reasonable notice of the member's intention to return to duty.

7.12 TIME OFF DUE TO S.T.D., L.T.D., WORKER'S COMPENSATION, MATERNITY,
PATERNITY, OTHER APPROVED LEAVE, SUSPENSION AND APPROVED UNPAID
LEAVE

Should any member be off duty for any of the above mentioned reasons, they shall
be considered to be on duty, Monday to Friday, 0800 hours to 1600 hours, for
administrative purposes, until such time as they are fit to return to regular duty.

Should they be required to attend court, the Court Officer shall issue a subpoena.

7.13 REPORTING ABSENCE FROMWORK

When any member is reporting any absence from work (including calling in sick prior
to shift, booking off sick while at work, in all cases of injury whether injured on duty
or at home, or if hospitalized). Any absence will be reported to the officer in charge
who will update the electronic staffing calendar and notify the Administrator. The

officer in charge will advise a senior officer of all absentee members for briefing

purposes.



Page 38 of 51

Page 24 of 34

7.14 UNCONDITIONALRELEASES
When a person is taken into police custody and after a thorough investigation has
been made and there is not sufficient evidence to substantiate laying a charge, such
person shall be released immediately and restored as closely as possible to the same

conditions that existed prior to the person's detention.

7.15 LIQUOR

A member, while on duty, shall not consume or possess intoxicating liquor, except

as required on official business of the Service.

7.16 CANNABIS
A member shall not:
a) While on duty consume cannabis and/or cannabis products.

b) Consume cannabis and/or cannabis products within 8 hours prior to
commencement of duty.

c) possess cannabis and/or cannabis products,

Except as required on official business of the Service or as prescribed by a medical
practitioner.

7.17 FIT FOR DUTY AND DUTY TO REPORT
Pursuant to sections 7.17 and 7.18 it is expected that at all times members are to

report Fit for Duty. Fit for Duty means that a member is mentally, emotionally,
and physically able to safely and competently perform assigned duties, without
any limitations attributable, but not limited to, illness, injury, fatigue, mental
stress or the use and/or after effects of alcohol or drugs. Members have a
responsibility to disclose to their supervisor when they are not fit for duty,
resulting from medication, substance use, physical injury/iliness and/or

psychological injury/illness.



Page 39 of 51

Page 25 of 34

7.18 CITIZEN'S COMPLAINT
Any member shall forthwith notify their Supervisor when receiving a complaint from
a citizen against any member of the Service. The Supervisor shall forthwith interview
the complainant and shall document the complaint. The documentation of the
complaint shall be forwarded to the Deputy Chief of Police or his designate. SEE

PROCEDURES.

The aforementioned does not preclude the Supervisor from taking immediate and

necessary action if illegal or undesirable conditions deem it necessary.

7.19 SMOKING AND CHEWING
Amember,whenin uniform, shall not smoke, chew tobacco, gum or other substance

in viewofthe public.

The St. Thomas Police Service facilities are a non-smoking facility. Members of the
Service and members of the Publicare not allowed to smoke within the facility or in

accordance withthe Ontario Smoke-Free Ontario Act.

7.20 LITIGATION
When a writ is served upon a member in a legal proceeding arising out of action
taken in the discharge of policy duty, natification or such, together with a statement
of the facts giving rise to the proceedings, shall immediately be forwarded to the

Chief of Police.

The Chief of Police shall notify the Board Solicitor for such preliminary action, as the

Solicitor may deem desirable pending formal instructions from the Board.

7.21 ACCEPTANCE OFGIFTS
No gratuity, present, reward or any free personal service, including gifts offered at
Christmas or any other time of the year by a person or company, shall be taken or

accepted byany member.



Page 40 of 51
Page 26 of 34

Nothinginthis regulation prohibits a donation to the St. Thomas Police Association ortheir

functions, uponthe approval of the Chiefof Police.

7.22 OVERTIMEANDCALLBACKSLIPS
All slips will be completed and submitted upon completion of shift. There will be no

remuneration unlessthis procedure has beenfollowed.

7.23 COMPLETION OF DUTYROSTER
Supervisors are to ensure that ALL members are included on the electronic duty roster
complete with theirscheduledshift,time off reasontime off wasgranted,zoneand all
otherpertinentinformation.

7.24 SOFT BODY ARMOUR USAGE

e All sworn operational personnel in uniform SHALL wear their soft body armour
while performing their duties outside police headquartersand/orin the court
buildings.

e Thewearingofsoftbodyarmourwithinthe police buildingis optional.

e All sworn operational personnel assigned to plain clothes (criminal
investigations branch, old clothes details, etc.) SHALL have their body armour
readily available for use when performing theirduties and shall wearthe body
armourwhenrespondingto high-riskincidents.

e [tshall bethe responsibility of each member of the St. Thomas Police Service to
ensure their body armour is maintained in accordance with the manufacturer
instructions and report any deficiencies immediately to their supervisor.

e Theseregulations apply to members of the St. Thomas Police Service while working
extra paid duties.

e AlLmembersof theSt. Thomas Policeshare the responsibility of ensuring that

thisregulationisadhered to.



Page 41 of 51
Page 27 of 34

7.25 MEMO BOOK RETENTION

In the event that a current member requires a notebook for court purposes, etc., the officer

shall have access to their archived notebooks fromthe Property Officer.(PolicyLE-

022Adequacy Standards).



8.1

8.2

83

8.4

85

Page 42 of 51
Page 28 of 34

Chapter Eight

Prisoners

SEARCH

Prior to any prisoner being placed in a cell, a search of such prisoners shall be
conducted under the supervision of the duty N.C.O. and any property located shall
be placed in the prisoner's property locker. A prisoner search shall be conducted by
the same gender of police officer in which case another member shall be within

calling distance to verify property removed from the prisoner.

Prior to any prisoner being placed in a police vehicle, the arresting officers shall

search both the prisoner and the police vehicle.

No person, other than a member of the Service, shall be allowed to remain in any

room where a prisoner is being searched.

INJURED ORILLPRISONERS

Unconscious, semi-conscious or apparently injured or ill persons who are in police
custody, should be taken immediately by ambulance to the nearest hospital and an

incident created outlining the reason why medical attention isrequired.

PRISONER'S USE OF TELEPHONE

Persons under arrest shall, as soon as circumstances permit, be allowed the
reasonable, private use of a telephone. Where an accused person telephones his/her
lawyer, the telephone in the security room shall be used. Prior to this call being
placed, the escorting police officer shall ensure the audio recording device is turned

off.



Page 43 of 51
Page 29 of 34

8.6  LUNCHES IN CELLS
When prisoners are given lunches, communication staff should be notified to monitor
the cells. Uneaten food and garbage is to be removed at the first opportunity. In the
past, uneaten lunches were left in the cells and used by a prisoner to plug the toilet
and food was smeared on the walls. In those circumstances where this type of
mischief can be proven, charges shall be laid.
8.7 CARE OF PERSONS IN CUSTODY
Prisoners may be interviewed only under the direction of, or with the permission of the
Officer in Charge, or the Officer in Charge of the case. If required, only lawyers or
qualified para-legal will be allowed accesstothe secure areas of the St. Thomas Police
Service, forthe purposesofreceiving instructionsfrom theirclients. Itisappropriate to
placethelawyerinthecellarea, providethemwith a chairandailowtheinterviewtotake
place inthe cell area. ltis recommended that an Interview cell be used to allow for as

much privacy as possible.

8.8 Prisoners in cells shall be visually checked by a member of the Service at least every

fifteen (15) minutesand spoken withor examined astotheir condition.

89 Any member who is directly involved with the arrest, detention or release of a person
who has visible signs of or complains of an injury, shall note such injury or complaint
on an occurrence report or supplementary report as the case may be and forthwith

deliver the report to his/her supervisor.

810 Everycellistobelocked when prisonersare confined

8.11 BASICRIGHTS

Thebasicrightsofa personwho hasbeenarrested istoretaina lawyer. Theymustalso



8.12

Page 44 of 51

Page 30 of 34

beallowed to discuss their case in private either in person or on the telephone witha

lawyer.
PRISONER ESCORT TO COURT
All prisoners in custody (City or OPP), either as a result of remand or a recent court

appearance, may be released from the holding area of the Police Service or from court

(Elgin County Courthouse) asdirected bythesittingJustice.

The prisoner escort logisin place to provide up to date information to the Officer in
Charge. Thislog will give the statusof ALLprisonersheld in thecells.
The Court Officeisresponsiblefortheinitialcompletion, and emailingthislogto the N.C.O.

at STPS HQ.

The escort officer will maintain the log on all prisoners in the cells. It is this officer’s

responsibility to update the status of ALL prisoners so that the ECC Supervisor has up to

date pertinent information.



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Page 45 of 51
Page 31 of 34

Chapter Nine

Police Vehicles

No member shall operate a police vehicle unless licensed by the Ministry of

Transportation of Ontario.

Members, whose assignment involves the operation of the Police Service's
vehicles, shall be subject to the Police Service's testing procedures to ascertain

their ability to operate such vehicles.

Members are accountable for the vehicles assigned to them and shall, prior to
each tour of duty, examine such vehicle for cleanliness, mechanical defects,

damage and all necessary equipment.

Members shall operate only the vehicles that have been assigned to them.

Members shall always lock the ignition switch and remove the keys from any
unattended vehicle. The doors and windows shall also be secured except in an
emergency. Officer's coming on shift are to ensure they have a complete set of keys.

Lost or missing keys MUST be reported to the N.C.O. immediately.

It is the responsibility of the officer going off duty to ensure that the keys are

returned in the proper condition to the proper location.

The duty N.C.O. upon receiving a report that keys are missing will call the officer

who went off duty at home, and that officer will return to the station and account

for the keys.

All police vehicles shall be shut off when being left unattended or parked at the police

station. The 'idling parked vehicles' is not permitted without extenuating



Page 46 of 51

Page 32 uf 34
circumstances or reasonable justification for doing so. Service repair technicians
have advised the constantly "idling" of a vehicle (unnecessarily) is hard on the
engine/parts. Breakdowns are more apt to occur if this continues increasing potential

downtime and preventative costs.

9.6 Police vehicles shall be used for police purposes only, unless permission has been

granted from a senior officer to use the vehicle(s) in other special circumstances.

9.7 When a vehicle becomes unserviceable in any way, the operator of such vehicle shall
report immediately to the operator's supervisor and radio dispatcher and shall act

upon theirinstructions.

9.8 Members operating motor vehicles shall drive in a cautious manner at all times and
obey the Highway Traffic Act of Ontario, its regulations and traffic by-laws of the
City of St. Thomas. However, when emergency necessitates exceeding the limitations
of those laws, or by-laws, the operator of such vehicle shall drive in a defensive

manner and exercise extreme care.

9.9 When a police vehicle is involved in a motor vehicle collision with another vehicle,
person or object, an officer of supervisory rank shall investigate the accident
forthwith and submit a motor vehicle collision report. The driver involved in the
collision shall submit an internal Police Service Accident
report. The Supervisor responding to the accident, shall upon completion of the
investigation submit a report to their Superior outlining the circumstances and
include the Supervisors opinion of any negligence or violations on the part of any of

the drivers involved.

9.10 Damage to any police vehicle by means other than described in Section 9.9 shall be
reported forthwith by such vehicle operator to their supervisor and an occurrence

report prepared and submitted by such vehicle operator. The supervisor of the



9.11

9.12

9.13

Page 47 of 51

Page 33 of 34
reporting member shall submit a report to their supervisor explaining the details of

the matter.

When practicable, it shall be the responsibility of the off-going driver to ensure that

the police vehicle is gassed and serviced for the oncoming shift.

Unauthorized person(s) in police vehicles are prohibited

The wearing of seatbelts in police vehicles is mandatory as required by the Highway
Traffic Act.



Page 48 of 51
Page 34 ol 34

Chapter Ten

Police Building

10.1 Strict order, discipline and cleanliness are to be observed in the Police station and all
other buildings. Members shall not litter any room. Refuse shall be deposited in

appropriately placed receptacles.

10.2 No person shall be permitted to enter or remain in any part of the police building,
other than public areas, without permission of the officer incharge; this section does

not include members of the Service or authorized persons on official business.

10.3 No person shall be allowed to visit the cells without the permission of the officer in
charge.

10.4 On a regular basis, building maintenance deficiencies are encountered within our
building. Occasionally, they are not promptly addressed or repaired because they are
not reported to the appropriate office. To remedy this, any deficiencies encountered
by our members are to be reported immediately via email to the attention of the
Deputy Chief of Police. In the event of an emergency situation such as water leaks,
gas smells, etc., the building superintendent or his designate will be contacted at any
time day or night in order that they may assess and minimize any potential damage.
It shall be the responsibility of Sunday night shift N.C.0. to ensure that all areas of the
security section of the building are searched for contraband including tobacco,
matches, drugs, etc. This search will include all cells and washrooms. A report shall
be forwarded to the Deputy Chief of Police upon locating any contraband during
these searches outlining the items located, location discovered, the time and date of

the find and any other relevant information.



Page 49 of 51

Wall of Honour

Constable Colin McGregor Building
November 9, 2021

MINUTES
\ Present: |
| Chris Herridge | Chief |
' Marc Roskamp | Deputy Chief |
Scott Berge | STPA President ‘
Bob Dymock | Retired Inspector |
Lynn Coates Retired Administrator _'
Tiffany Terpstra ' Executive Administrator

Chief Herridge welcomed all members to the meeting and provided an overview of areas
requiring further discussion.

Chief Herridge reviewed the format/style of the retiree wall of honour that Cornwall Police
Service purchased.

The group decided that the “Wall of Honour” (honouring those who served) should include
retirees as well as those who have provided service meeting defined criteria that will be
established by the Wall of Honour Committee.

The group decided that all members in attendance at this meeting would serve as the
committee in addition Chief Herridge will asked the Police Services Board if they could have
one Board Member participate on the committee as well. Chief will bring this to the November

2021 PSB meeting.

The group discussed the costs of the project. Bob indicated that he could make the name
plates for each member if we could have someone create the actual Wall of Honour Board.
Chief will contact GCW (as they provide their Boardroom to Administration for strategic
meetings) and ask if they would be interested in assisting. Bob will put together a template for
the group to review as a sample name plate, including the following:

l|Page




Page 50 of 51

CHIEF WILLIAM ARMSTRONG #101

1884-1932
RETIRED

The committee agreed that members should meet the following criteria to be able to be
included on the Wall of Honour:

e Minimum 5 years of honourable service

e Member ended service due to medical or end of life tragedy

Lynn will review the member listing and prepare for committee review at next meeting.

Tiffany will book another meeting the first week of December for committee.

ACTION ITEMS:
|' Member \ Action Item
Chief Herridge ‘ e To inform the PSB of the Wall of Honour concept and request their
: support in this project.
Chief Herridge e To request a PSB member to participate on the Wall of Honour
. committee.
Chief Herridge e To contact GCW to inform them of the concept of the Wall of
Honour and see if they are interested in participating.
Bob Dymock e To create sample name plates for the committee to review.
 Lynn Coates . e Toreview member listing to prepare for committee review.
| Tiffany Terpstra | e Send Lynn a copy of the updated member listing.
Tiffany Terpstra e Coordinate another committee meeting the first week of
December 2021.




Page 51 of 51




	2021 - AGENDA - November 24, 2021 - Open Session
	PSB Meeting Package - Open Session (November 24, 2021)



